
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Barbican Residential Committee 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 9 AUGUST 2023 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Mark Wheatley 

Anne Corbett 
Deputy Mark Bostock 
Helen Fentimen 
John Foley 
Steve Goodman 
Frances Leach 
 

Andrew McMurtrie 
Timothy James McNally 
Alderwoman Susan Pearson 
Ruby Sayed (Ex-Officio Member) 
Paul Singh 
Ceri Wilkins 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Matthew Stickley, Governance and Member Services Manager 

Matthew.Stickley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London 

Corporation by following the below link: 
https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams  

 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not 
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the 
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the 
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 
 
Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible 
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded 
following the end of the meeting. 

 
Ian Thomas CBE 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams


2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

4. ORDER OF THE COURT 
 

 To receive the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 27 April 2023 appointing 
the committee and setting its Terms of Reference. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
5. ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN 
 

 To elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 29. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
6. ELECTION OF A DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
 

 To elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 30. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
7. BARBICAN ESTATE OFFICE REVIEW 
 

 Report of the Executive Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 7 - 14) 

 
8. RECRUITMENT OF A PERMANENT HEAD OF BARBICAN ESTATE OFFICE 
 

 Report of the Executive Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 16) 

 



3 
 

 
9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



LYONS, Mayor RESOLVED: That the Court of Common 
Council holden in the Guildhall of the City of 
London on Thursday, 27th April, 2023, doth 
hereby appoint the following Committee until 
the first meeting of the Court in April, 2024. 

 
BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE 

 
1. Constitution 

A Non-Ward Committee consisting of, 

• 7 Members who are non-residents of the Barbican Estate elected by the Court of Common Council, at least one of 
whom shall have fewer than five years’ service on the Court at the time of their appointment 

• 2 Members nominated by each of the following Wards/Sides of Ward:- 
o Aldersgate 
o Cripplegate Within 
o Cripplegate Without  

• the Chairman or Deputy Chairman of the Community & Children’s Services Committee (ex-officio) 
The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Committee shall be elected from the Members who are non-residents of the 
Barbican Estate. 

 
2. Quorum  

The quorum consists of any three Members who are non-residents of the Barbican Estate. 
 
3. Membership 2023/24 

  

Non-Residents:- 

    

  2   (1)   Anne Corbett for one year 

  2   (1)   John Ross Foley for one year 

  4    (3)   Andrew Stratton McMurtrie, J.P. 

   2    (2)   John William Fletcher, Deputy     

   6    (2)   Mark Raymond Peter Henry Delano Wheatley 

   7    (1)   Susan Pearson, Alderwoman 

   2    (1)   Timothy McNally 

 

 

 

Residents:- 

Nominations by the Wards of Aldersgate and Cripplegate (Within and Without), each for the appointment of two 
Members: 

Aldersgate 

Steve Goodman, O.B.E. 

Helen Lesley Fentimen, O.B.E. 

 

Cripplegate (Within and Without) 

Mark Bostock, Deputy  

Frances Leach 

Paul Singh 

Ceri Wilkins 

 
together with the ex-officio Members referred to in paragraph 1 above. 
 

 

 
4. Terms of Reference 

 To be responsible for:- 
 

(a) 
 

the management of all completed residential premises and ancillary accommodation on the Barbican Estate, e.g. the commercial 
premises, launderette, car parks, baggage stores, etc. (and, in fulfilling those purposes, to have regard to any representations 
made to it by the Barbican Estate Residents’ Consultation Committee); 
 

(b) 
 
 

the disposal of interests in the Barbican Estate pursuant to such policies as are from time to time laid down by the Court of Common 
Council. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee(s): 

Barbican Estate Residents’ Consultation Committee 

(for information) 

 

Barbican Residential Committee 

(for decision) 

Dated: 

7 August 2023 

 

 

9 August 2023 

 

Subject: Independent Review of the Barbican Estate 

Office 

Public* 

 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

4,8,9,10,12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 

capital spending? 

Yes 

If so, how much? Short term costs met from 

existing BEO budgets. 

 

Longer term proposals 

intended to be cost neutral. 

What is the source of Funding? Barbican Service Charges 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 

Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Executive Director of Community and 

Children’s Services  

For Decision 

Report author: Rosalind Ugwu, Interim Head of 

Barbican Estate Office 

 

*Aspects of this report is exempt by virtue of the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. The appendices to this report contain 
sensitive information which may be exempted under the Act and will need to be 
considered in closed session. 
 
It is considered that information falling under the following paragraphs outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing information:  

2) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person or 
body (including the authority holding that information).  

4) Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office 
holders under, the authority. 

 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Summary 

 

The housing consultancy, Altair, was commissioned to carry out an independent 

review of the Barbican Estate Office in 2022, concluding in May 2023. This report 

presents a summary of the Altair review and seeks approval for the key 

recommendations. The report requests endorsement of the proposed transformation 

action plan, which provides details of actions proposed and already in train. The 

transformation action plan will be a standing agenda item and update reports will be 

provided at all future Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee and 

Barbican Residential Committee meetings. 

 

Recommendation(s) 

The Barbican Residential Committee is recommended to: 

 

1. Note the report and independent review of the Barbican Estate Office. 

2. Note the key themes identified by Altair during the review of the Barbican 

Estate Office. 

3. Note the operational matters already underway in response to the Barbican 

Estate Office Review. 

4. Agree the Action Plan for implementation. 

 

Main Report 

Background 

 

1. In October 2022, a project board was setup to procure and manage an 

independent review of the Barbican Estate Office. The review was commissioned 

and funded by the City of London Corporation.  

 

2. The project board overseeing the review consisted of: 

 

• Assistant Director of Barbican and Property Services 

• Chair of Barbican Estate Residents Consultative Committee 

• Interim Head of the Barbican Estate Office 

 

3. The Project Board was subject to the City of London’s formal procurement 

procedures and selected Altair at the Tender evaluation panel on 13 October 

2022.  

 

4. Altair were commissioned to undertake an independent review of the efficiency, 

cost effectiveness and value for money of services delivered by the Barbican 

Estate Office to residents of the estate. In addition, the scope required the review 

Page 8



to identify efficiency savings on both the Landlord’s Account and Service Charge 

Account 

 

5. The review consisted of two phases: 

 

Phase 1: Interim Report (Appendix 1)– Conducting a critical appraisal of 

current services and producing an interim report. The interim report was 

delivered in December 2022. A summary report (Appendix 2) was produced 

for general publication in February 2023. The review consisted of discussions 

with thirty-five members of staff, 1-2-1 discussions with forty-five residents, 

thirty written correspondences from residents, surveys and perusal of over 

one hundred documents. The Interim Head of Barbican Residential Estate 

presented the summary report to staff at an online briefing, recorded for those 

who could not attend, on 14th February 2023. 

 

Phase 2: Stage 2 Report (Appendix 3) – An options development and 

recommendations report which identified thirteen areas for improvement. The 

report was delivered in February 2023 and was the subject of a presentation 

by an Altair Consultant, to a joint meeting of BRC and RCC on 24th May 2023. 

The presentation (Appendix 4) was a summary version of the full report and 

issued for general publication. Prior to the presentation, four briefing sessions, 

facilitated by AD Barbican and Housing and Interim Head of Barbican 

Residential Estate, were given to staff. 

 

6. Once the reports were finalised, an action plan was developed to respond to the 

Altair recommendations.  

 

7. It is anticipated that update reports on progress against the action plan will be 

presented to all future committees as a standard agenda item. 

 
  

Page 9



Current Position 

 

The full reports are subject to redaction in readiness for publication on the Barbican 

website. The redactions have been made based on the following criteria: 

 

• Information which could lead to individual employees being identified. 

• Reference to performance of individuals or teams in a way which could be 

identifiable of individuals.  

• Information or relative cost calculations which could cause general prejudice 

to our commercial position and is commercially sensitive. 

• Information which indicates a potential change to a substantive post, 

redundancy or change to contract of employment in advance of formal 

consultation with recognised trade unions and employees.  

• Resident safety and security  

 

The redacted reports have also taken account of advice from the City Solicitor and 

Altair regarding the public access to the reports.  

 

Recommendations 

 

1. The stage 2 report is broken down into three phases: 

a. Immediate: Senior Leadership Structure 

 

i. Appointment of the Head of Barbican Residential Estate with 

increased responsibility and accountability and subject to a 

redesign and re-evaluation of the current role and its 

responsibilities. (Agenda item 2 – Separate report) 

ii. Move the reporting line for the Service Charge and Revenue 

Manager from Assistant Director of Housing and Barbican to the 

Head of Barbican Residential Estate. The change has no savings 

or additional costs. 

iii. Move the reporting line for the Property Services Manager, in turn 

three Property Services Officers, to the Head of Barbican 

Residential Estate. The change has no savings or additional 

costs. 

iv. Increase the remit of the Commercial Property Officer to include, 

maximising income generation and for commercial activity 

including car parks and stores. In addition, move the reporting line 

for the role to the Service charge and Revenue Manager. The 

change has potential costs of £30k which could be offset in the 

phase 2 operational redesign.  

v. Extend the skillset within the property service team by the 

appointment of a Surveyor/Contract Manager. The change has 

Page 10



potential costs of £52k which could be offset in the phase 2 

operational redesign.  

vi. Review the cleaning service with potential cost savings of £150k. 

 

These recommendations are presented for your endorsement. 

 

b. Phase 1 includes recommendations to: 

i. Redesign key processes including general repairs, resident 

services, spare key storage and parcel collection. 

ii. Improve the budgeting, cost control and service charges including, 

external service charge validation, starting the budgeting process 

earlier, introducing a culture of cost control, review of 

communications and increase to quarterly, reconciliation of 

previous years’ service charges by June, 

iii. Introduce a formal financial and performance reporting framework 

which provides a golden thread to objectives, defined reporting 

and timings to appropriate governance groups, targets to allow 

monitoring and continuous service improvement and clear roles 

and responsibilities to manage and coordinate the framework. 

 

 

c. Phase 2 – discusses seven potential alternative options for organisational 

structure, culture, and roles including: 

i. Models for service delivery 

1. Two options to develop the Estate Management and resident 

service function.  

2. Single point of accountability 

3. Role of car park attendants which is also subject to savings 

requirement of the City’s Target Operating Model 

4. Role of the Resident engineer and duty manager 

5. Major works and cyclical programmes 

6. Consideration of outsourcing and shared service 

opportunities 

 

2. The phase 2 recommendations are presented with delivery timescales in the 

attached Transformation action plan for BRC endorsement (Appendix 5). 

 
  

Page 11



Proposals 

 

1. BRC approve the Altair independent review recommendations. 

 

2. BRC approve the transformation action plan. 

 

Corporate & Strategic Implications  

 

1. The improvement of the quality of service delivery to residents of the Barbican 

Estate is an important priority for the City of London. The external and 

independent review by Altair has provided a thorough evidence base of 

priority areas for transformation. The oversight and scrutiny of delivery of 

actions against the recommendations within the governance structures will 

involve both members and residents, increasing accountability and providing 

assurance to the wider resident population of the Barbican Estate.  

 

2. The transformation action plan will be supported by a change management 

programme, which may have future resource and financial implications, 

dependent on the options which may be pursued. As part of the regular 

updates on progress against the action plan, the BRC will be fully consulted 

and appraised, prior to any changes being implemented.  

 

Conclusion 

 

The Altair review and its recommendations sets out a clear pathway for the 

transformation of services to residents of the Barbican estate. The oversight and 

monitoring of the actions in the transformation action plan should ensure that 

demonstrable improvements are achieved.  

 

Appendices  

 

Appendix 1 – Phase 1 Interim Report 

Appendix 2 – Summary Report 

Appendix 3 – Phase 2 Report 

Appendix 4 – Presentation Summary Version of Full Report 

Appendix 5 – Transformation Action Plan 

 

Rosalind Ugwu 

Interim Head of Barbican Residential Estate 

 

T: 07522 619 645 

E: rosalind.ugwu@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 12

mailto:rosalind.ugwu@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Foreword 

The Altair review (2022/23) of the Barbican Estate Office is an important milestone 

for the residents and staff of the Barbican Estate. The report highlights the need for 

significant and sustained improvement across all aspects of our work and service 

delivery. In accepting the key themes of this report, we have already commenced 

work on a structured, complex and thorough change programme that will take place 

over the next two years. We are approaching this with the urgency and pace that is 

required and will ensure that the change is sustained through improved use of 

technology, systems and effective performance management. 

Engagement of our residents is key in this change programme, and we have been 

incredibly fortunate to have Sandra Jenner and Adam Hogg (as Chairs of the 

Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee and Barbican Association 

respectively) representing residents' voices and providing both strong, effective 

challenge and support to the programme. We will facilitate a resident engagement 

forum in September to ensure that all residents can engage and can give feedback 

on our plans for change. Ongoing communication and engagement with staff and 

contractors are absolutely key to the success of this change programme and this 

engagement is built into the plan. 

The City of London Corporation has provided additional project management 

capacity to support delivery of this programme, and we are reviewing the additional 

support we require to achieve our shared ambitions. 

The plan covers every aspect of the review, but I highlight several priority areas of 

focus for our work.  

1. Permanent recruitment to the Head of Barbican Estate Office 

2. Revise the structure of Barbican Estate office to deliver a cost effective and 

efficient service 

3. Develop a programme to enhance the culture and performance management 

of the service 

4. Review of operational arrangements (e.g., car parking) 

5. Ensure the effective management of the fabric of the Estate 

6. Improve transparency, accuracy and value for money of service charges 

  

The attached action plan will be a developing and changing document, ensuring that 

we drive the necessary improvements. I welcome comments and feedback as we 

work to deliver the necessary change and improvement. In driving this work, we will 

create an environment that will allow both residents and staff to have confidence and 

pride in our work. 

Judith Finlay 

Executive Director of Community and Children’s Services 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Committee(s) 
Barbican Residential Committee   

Dated: 
 

Subject: Senior Officer Recruitment Public 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? NA 

What is the source of Funding? NA 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

NA 

Report of: Executive Director Community & Children’s 
Services 

For Decision 

Report author: Judith Finlay, Executive Director 
Community & Children’s Services 

 

Summary 

Under the Senior Officer Recruitment Procedure, a Chief Officer should report the 
recruitment of a senior officer and summarise a suggested recruitment timeframe. 
This report notes the recruitment of a senior officer and summarises a recruitment 
plan. 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 

• Note the report. 

Main Report 

Background 

1. The Head of the Barbican Estate Office has been covered by an interim 
postholder for the last 12 months.  It has been agreed to recruit permanently to 
this role.   

Current Position 

2. The post is a critical senior management position and will be expected to lead on 
the implementation of recommendations emerging from a recent independent 
review by the external consultancy, Altair.  The role and responsibilities have 
been assessed internally within the Department and TOM phase two and 
evaluated as a key role in the Housing Division.   

3. The job description for the Head of the Barbican Estate Office has been updated 
and the person specification reviewed to better reflect the duties of the post 
holder. The role has been renamed Head of the Barbican Residential Estate to 
better reflect the responsibilities of the post holder. 

 

 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



4. There has also been a review of the operational management responsibilities to 
reflect additional reporting lines as well as a greater emphasis on the strategic 
responsibilities of the role.  The requirements for the post holder to transform the 
quality of the service with increased accountability to residents has also been 
strengthened.   

 
5. Due to the changes that have been made to the role, and its additional 

responsibilities, the job will be re-evaluated to ensure that the grade reflects the 
new responsibilities and change in reporting lines.   

 

Proposals 

6. Following discussions with the Chairs of the Barbican Residential Committee and 
Barbican Residents Consultative Committee, and in accordance with the Senior 
Officer Recruitment Procedure, the Chairs of both committees will be involved in 
the permanent recruitment process.   

Corporate & Strategic Implications 

7. This is a key senior managerial post critical to leading and providing strategic, 
operational, financial and stakeholder management of the Barbican estate.  The 
postholder will be responsible for ensuring high standards in accordance with the 
policies laid down by the City of London Corporation and its statutory landlord 
obligations for the management of large-scale residential estates.    

8. There will be a small cost associated with the recruitment campaign and this will 
be met from the Department’s Local Risk budget. 

Conclusion 

9. It is intended to have recruited to the post of Head of Barbican Residential Estate 
by the autumn of 2023.   

 

Judith Finlay 
Executive Director Community & Children’s Services  
  
E: Judith.Finlay@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
T: 020 7332 1650 

 

 

Page 16

mailto:Judith.Finlay@cityoflondon.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Order of the Court
	7 Barbican Estate Office Review
	Recommendation(s)
	Main Report
	Foreword - BEO Review - Copy

	8 Recruitment of a Permanent Head of Barbican Estate Office

